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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

HELPING OUR CLIENTS'
VISIONS ADD UP

To the Honorable Mayor, Mr. Matthew J. Driscoll
and the Members of the Common Council
City of Syracuse, New York

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the Syracuse Urban Renewal Agency, a discretely presented component unit, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Syracuse, New York, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the
accompanying table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the City of
Syracuse, New York’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Syracuse Industrial
Development Agency or the Syracuse Economic Development Corporation, both of which are discretely
presented component units, which collectively represent 98.8% and 99.5%, respectively, of the assets and
revenues of the combined component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the Syracuse Industrial Development Agency and Syracuse Economic Development Corporation is based
solely on the reports of the other auditors, -

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our

opimnion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the basic financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Syracuse, New York, as of June 30, 2004, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows of its business-type activities, for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

(Continued)
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The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through
15 and page 62, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not

audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Syracuse, New York’s basic financial statements taken as a whole. The combining
fund statements, which are listed in the table of contents as the supplemental section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28,
2004, on our consideration of the City of Syracuse, New York’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the

results of our audit.

December 28, 2004
Syracuse, New York



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Our discussion and analysis of City of Syracuse’s financial performance provides an overview of the
City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

Please read it in conjunction with the City’s basic financial statements, including the notes to the financial
statements, which begin on page 29. In this discussion and analysis all amounts are expressed in millions
of dollars, unless otherwise indicated.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City’s total net assets increased by $2.3 as a result of this year’s operations. Net assets of our
business-type activities increased by $2.0 and net assets of our governmental activities increased by $0.3,

including transfers.

During the year, the City had expenses that were $1.2 more than the $535.7 generated in tax and
other revenues (excluding capital contributions). Last year expenses exceeded revenues by $23.2 before

capital contributions.

In the City’s business-type activities, revenues increased to $54.0, a 5.5% increase over last year’s
revenues of $51.2. Expenses for this year increased to $53.0, a 8.2% increase over last year’s $49.0.

In the City’s governmental activities, revenues increased to $481.7, a 5.5% increase over last year’s
revenues of $456.6. Expenses also increased this year to $483.9 versus last year at $482.0, a 0.4% increase.

Of the City’s total net assets reported at June 30, 2004, $177.4 was invested in capital assets, net of
related debt versus $176.0 the previous year. Unrestricted net assets this year were ($69.5) versus last

year’s ($65.9).

The City’s General Fund reported a deficit for this year of $6.5, including other financing sources
and uses. The resources available for appropriation (revenues and bond proceeds) were approximately $3.3
more than the revised budget, while expenditures were approximately in line with the revised budget. At
the end of the current fiscal year, undesignated fund balance of the City’s General Fund was $15.6 and
9.6% of total General Fund actual expenditures (including transfers out).

(Continued)



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities (on pages 16 andl17, respectively) provide information about the activities of the
City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. Fund financial statements start on
page 18. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short
term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City’s
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s
most financially significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities
for which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

Reporting the City as a Whole

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 6. One of the most important questions asked
about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s
activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City
as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include a//
assets and habilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most
private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of the City’s
net assets, the difference between assets (what the citizens own) and liabilities (what the citizens owe) as
one way to measure the City’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in
the City’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You
will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the City’s property tax base,
and the condition of the City’s capital assets (streets, buildings, water and sewer lines) to assess the overall
health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into three kinds of
activities: :

e Governmental activities --- Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire,
public works, community development and parks & recreation departments, and general administration.
The City School District’s operations are also reported here. State aid, sales tax, property taxes and
federal and state grants finance most of these activities.

» Business-type activities --- The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of
certain services it provides. The City’s water and sewer systems, as well as the airport activities, are
reported here. In addition, the City School District’s food service operations are reported as business-

type activities.

(Continued)



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Reporting the City as a Whole (Cont’d)

e Component units --- The City includes three separate legal entities in its report --- the Syracuse
Industrial Development Agency, the Syracuse Economic Development Corporation, and the Syracuse
Urban Renewal Agency.

" Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Our analysis of the City’s major funds begins on page 9. The fund financial statements begin on
page 18 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City as a whole. Some
funds are required to be established by State law. However, the City’s Common Council establishes many
other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes (like the Local Development Fund)
or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money (like
grants received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development). The City’s two kinds of
funds, governmental and proprietary use different accounting approaches.

e Governmental funds --- Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps one determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
City’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities
(reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a
reconciliation accompanying the fund financial statements.

e Proprietary funds -—- When the City charges customers for the full cost of the services it provides
whether to outside customers or to other units of the City, these services are reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a component of business
type funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.

The City as Trustee

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the City
cannot use these assets to finance the City’s operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets
reported in these funds are used for their intended purpose. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are
reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets starting on
page 26. Agency funds are reported on a full accrual basis and only present a statement of assets and
liabilities.

(Continued)



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The City’s combined net assets increased from $207.0 at June 30, 2003 to $209.3 at June 30, 2004.
Our analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the City’s

governmental and business-type activities.

Please note that for 2003 the components of Net Assets (Invested in capital assets, Restricted and
Unrestricted) have been reclassified, although total net assets did not change. This reclassification was due
to the discovery that in 2003 debt issued for items that were not included in capital assets was being
included in the computation of capital assets, net of related debt.

Table 1
Net Assets
(In MiHions)
Total
Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2003
Restated and 2003
Net Assets 2003 Net Assets
2004 Reclassified 2004 Restated 2004 Reclassified

Current and other assets $ 1320 % 140.9 b 465 % 45.5 $ 1785 § 1864
Capital assets 3322 3332 119.5 119.8 451.7 453.0

Total assets 3 4642 3 474.1 3 166.0 3% 165.3 3 6302 3 6394
General obligation bonds 3 2154 % 215.9 $ 509 $ 54.8 $ 2663 3 2707
outstanding
Other long-term liabilities 79.6 95.5 4.0 6.6 83.6 102.1
Other liabilities 583 52.1 12.7 7.5 71.0 59.6

Total liabilities $ 3533 % 363.5 b 6706 § 68.9 $ 4209 $ 4324
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, $ 1774 % 176.0 $ 667 % 61.9 $ 2441 5 2379
net of related debt
Restricted 3.0 1.5 - - 3.0 1.5
Unrestricted (deficit) (69.5) (66.9) 31.7 34.5 (37.8) (32.4)

Total net assets b 1109 % 110.6 3 984 3 96.4 $ 2093 $ 2070

(Continued)



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONT’D)

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. By far, the largest portion of the City’s total net assets, $244.1 at June 30, 2004 reflects its
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure), less any related
debt still outstanding that was used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to

liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s total net assets, $3.0, represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used and are reported as restricted net assets. The remaining
category of total net assets, unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations and services to creditors and citizens, especially in the future. In the City’s case, total
unrestricted net assets as June 30, 2004 were a deficit of $37.8

Governmental activities

Total net assets of the City’s governmental activities increased by 0.2%, $110.9 compared to
$110.6.

The deficit in unrestricted net assets increased to $69.5 at June 30, 2004 compared to the previous
year deficit of $66.9. This change in the unrestricted net assets of the City’s governmental activities, a
decrease of $2.6, was primarily related to bond proceeds which are not revenue in the government-wide
statements, but are revenue in the funds statements. During the 2003-2004 fiscal year, the City issued $2.0
in pension obligation bonds to pay off the unamortized portion of retirement incentives that were offered by
the New York State Retirement Systems in previous years, and were being amortized through the State’s

retirement systems plans.

Business-type activities

The net assets of our business-type activities increased by 2.1% in 2004 ($98.4 compared to $96.4).
This increase is primarily invested in capital assets. In addition, this increase generally cannot be used to
make up for the decrease reported in the governmental activities. The City can generally only use these net
assets to finance the continuing operations of the airport, water, sewer operations and the school lunch

program.

{Continued)



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONT’D)

Changes in net assets

The change in net assets during the most recent fiscal year is reported in the Statement of Activities
found on page 17. Key elements of this change are illustrated in Table 2 below.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
(In Millions)
Total
Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 145 § 151 $ 505 3 495 $ 650 3% 646
Grants 115.9 100.5 33 1.5 119.2 102.0
General revenues:
Property taxes 79.6 80.2 - - 79.6 80.2
Other taxes 3.6 7.1 - - 3.6 7.1
Sales tax 52.9 48.8 - - 52.9 48.8
Unallocated State Aid 205.7 199.0 - - 205.7 199.0
Unallocated Federal Aid 6.4 3.1 - - 6.4 31
Investment earnings 03 1.7 0.2 0.2 0.5 1.9
Other general revenues 2.8 1.1 - - 2.8 1.1
Total revenues 481.7 456.6 54.0 51.2 535.7 507.8
Program expenses
Total governmental 483.9 482.0 - - 483.9 482.0
School District Food Service - - 8.4 8.7 8.4 8.7
Aviation - - 293 257 29.3 257
Water - - 11.8 11.1 11.8 11.1
Sewer - - 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
Total expenses 4383.9 482.0 33.0 49.0 536.9 531.0
Excess (deficiency) before transfers (2.2) {(25.4) 1.0 22 (1.2) {23.2)
Transfers 2.5 1.8 (2.5) {1.8) - -
Capital contributions - - 3.5 6.3 3.5 6.3
Increase {decrease) in net assets $ 03 § _(23.6) 3 20 §__ 67 $§ 23 § (169
(Continued)



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONT’D})

Changes in net assets (Cont’d)

The City’s total revenues increased by 5.5% or $27.9 ($535.7 compared to the previous year of
$507.8). The total cost of all programs and services increased by 1.1% or $5.9 ($536.9 compared to
$531.0). While the increase in revenues was not enough to cover this year’s costs, capital contributions of
$3.5 resulted in an increase in net assets of $2.3 for fiscal year 2004 versus a decrease of $16.9 the previous
year. Qur analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental Activities

As mentioned previously in “financial highlights”, revenues for the City’s governmental activities
increased from $456.6 in 2003 to $481.7 in 2004, an increase of 5.5% or $25.1. Program expenses
increased slightly in 2004, going from $482.0 in 2003 to $483.9 in 2004, a 0.4% or $1.9 increase.

The majority of the $25.1 increase in revenues was due to an increase in both grants of $15.4 and
unallocated state aid of $6.7 (see Table 2).

Program expenses were only slightly higher in 2004, $483.9, as compared to $482.0 in 2003. The
significant increase in revenues coupled with a very modest increase in program expenses, as discussed
above, resulted in a slight increase in net assets for 2004 of $0.3, versus 2003, which was a decrease in net

assets of $23.6.

Business-type activities

Revenues in the City’s business-type activities (See Table 2) increased by 5.5%, or $2.8 ($54.0 in
2004 as compared to $51.2 in 2003). This increase, as compared to 2003, was primarily refated to capital
grants received by the airport (increased $1.6), water (increased $0.1) and sewer (increased $0.1), and a
small increase of $1.0 in charges for services for business-type activities. While charges for services at the
airport increased $2.3, charges for services by water, sewer and food service decreased by $1.3, collectively.

Expenses of the City’s business-type activities increased by 8.2%, or $4.0 ($53.0 versus $49.0 last
vear). Substantially all of this increase was related to the airport operations ($3.6) and was due to the
increased costs associated with an increase in airport activity.

THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

(Continued)



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

THE CITY’S FUNDS (CONT’D)

Governmental funds — As noted earlier the focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending as of the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $48.1, which is below last year’s total of $56.5. Approximately $21.6 this year, versus $32.4
last year, is available for spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance). The
remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed for a particular purpose by law or other legal provision.

e General Fund --- The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $16.8, while total fund balance was $17.1.
Last year unreserved fund balance, as restated, was $23.3 and total fund balance was $23.6. As a
measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. For the current year ending June 30, 2004, unreserved
fund balances represent 10.4% of total fund expenditures (including transfers out), while total fund
balance represents 10.5% of that same amount. The fund balance of the City’s General Fund decreased
by $6.5 during the current fiscal year. The budget for 2004 included appropriated fund balance of $9.4
as a budget revenue to balance the budget with expenditures. Thus, it would have been expected that
actual expenditures would have exceeded revenues by $9.4. However, as discussed earlier, the actual
deficit was $6.5. Actual revenues exceeded the final, revised budget by $2.3; and expenditures were $.3
more than the final, revised budget.

e Capital Projects Fund --- The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the construction and reconstruction of
general public improvements and major asset purchases, excluding projects related to business-type
activities, which are accounted for in each business-type activity. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the fund balance was $23.1. Of this amount $5.5 was encumbered for contracts underway, $16.9 was
for bond proceeds reserved for capital projects not yet expended at year end and $.7 was restricted for
payment of debt related to capital projects.

e ity School District special revenue fund --- The City School District special revenue fund is comprised
of the City School District’s General Operating Fund and the Special Aid Fund. The combined total
fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year was $5.6; last year it was $3.6. The increase of $2.0 is
related to an operating surplus for the year in the School District’s General Fund. Revenues, in the
School District’s General Fund for the year (including transfers in and bond proceeds) were $215.6 and
expenditures (including transfers out) were $213.6.

(Continued)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

o Community Development special revenue fund --- The Community Development Fund is a special
revenue fund used to account for the programs and projects primarily funded by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. The Community Development Fund accounts for its revenue and
expenditures using grant accounting. Therefore, revenues are accrued as the expenditures are incurred.
During the year, the fund recorded $16.5 in both revenues and expenditures. For fiscal year 2003, the
fund recorded revenues and expenditures of $21.8. At June 30, 2004, total assets were $12.9 and total
liabilities were $12.9. At the end of the previous fiscal year, total assets were $14.7 and liabilities were

$14.7.

Proprietary funds --- The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. All of the City’s proprietary funds are enterprise
funds and consist of the Aviation, Water, Sewer and the City School District Food Service Funds. The net
assets of the proprietary funds at the end of the current fiscal year totaled $98.4. An increase of $2.0 in total
net assets of the proprietary funds from 2003 to 2004, by fund, were as follows: Aviation Fund increased
by $2.5, the Water Fund decreased by $0.2, the Sewer Fund increased by $0.4, and the City School District

Food Service Fund decreased by $0.7.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

According to the City Charter, the City must adopt its budget no later than May 8 of each year for
the ensuing fiscal year beginning on July 1. The City’s General Fund original budget, which is prepared on
an operating basis, included estimated revenues and annual appropriations of $160.9. Included in the
estimated revenues was an appropriation of fund balance of $9.3.

During the course of the year, the City’s General Fund budget was amended for various small items,
resulting in a final, revised budget of $162.1, utilizing $9.4 of fund balance. See page 62 (Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) for
presentation of the General Fund original budget and final budget.

The actual performance of the General Fund resulted in an operating deficit for the current year of
$6.5, as compared to a final adopted budget with a deficit of $9.4.

(Continued)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

In accordance with GASBS No. 34, the City has recorded depreciation expense associated with ail
of its capital assets, including-infrastructure. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2004, amounted to $451.7 (net of accumulated depreciation).
The previous year’s amount was $453.0. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress.

The City’s governmental capital assets were $332.2 (net of accumulated depreciation) this year as
compared to $333.2 last year. For the City’s business-type activities, the balance at the end of this year was
$119.5 (net of accumulated depreciation) as compared to $119.8 last year.

Please refer to Note 3 (page 48) in the notes to the basic financial statements for more detailed
information regarding capital assets and accumulated depreciation.,

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following;:

Reconstruction of City streets and roads. Current year expenditures were $6.8.

Traffic lights were replaced with energy-saving LED signals. Expenditures were $1.2.
School District buildings were wired for modem technology. Expenditures were $5.8.
School building roofs and athletic fields were renovated. Expenditures were $3.3.

Work was continued on the School District’s Institute for Technology building. Current year
expenditures were $1.8.

At the airport, the terminal apron was renovated and resurfaced. FExpenditures were
approximately $2.9.

The airport continued its sound insulation program. Expenditures were approximately $2.0.
One of the City’s community centers was rehabilitated. Expenditures were $0.5.

Depreciation expense for the current fiscal year was $25.3 for governmental activities and $9.6 for
business-type activities.

(Continued)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONT’D)

Long-term Debt

At year-end the City had $295.3 outstanding in bounds and notes versus $306.4 last year, a decrease
of 3.6%. See Table 3 below for a breakdown of bonds and notes by governmental activities and business-

type activities.

Table 3
Outstanding Debt at Year-end
(In Millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
General obligation bonds $ 2153 $ 2159 $ 538 3 549 5 2692 5 2708
Bond anticipation notes 32 - 1.6 3.1 4.8 3.1
Revenue anticipation notes 18.0 273 - - 18.0 273
Tax anticipation notes 33 3.8 - - 33 3.8
Total $ 2398 $ 2470 § 554 $ 58.0 $ 2953 3 305.0

With respect to general obligation bonds, new debt was issued during the year in the amount of
approximately $20.1 to finance capital projects. New general obligation bonds were issued during the year
in the amount of $7.0 for a School District project to wire all school buildings for technology.
Approximately $11.5 million general obligation bonds were issued to finance bridge repairs, public
infrastructure improvements such as street reconstruction, sidewalk repairs, parking meter replacements,
traffic indicator replacement and repairs to two community centers. In addition, approximately $1.3 million
in bonds were issued for water transmission lines and infrastructure to preserve the Skaneateles Lake

watershed.

At the beginning of the fiscal year the City issued $35.0, on behalf of the School District, in revenue
anticipation notes (RANs) for cash flow purposes. In addition, once the School District’s state aid was
finalized due to delays with the passing of the State’s budget, the City issued another $14.9 in RANs on
behalf of the School District and $19.0 of its own RANs. A large portion of both the City and School
Dnstrict’s state aid 1s not received until the last quarter of the fiscal year; and therefore, necessitates cash
flow borrowing to fund the day-to-day operations. These notes matured at the end of the fiscal year. Near
the end of the fiscal year the City 1ssued $18.0 in revenue anticipation notes ($14.3 for the School District
and $3.7 for the City) and tax anticipation notes ($3.3 for the School District) to finance day-to-day
operations for the City and School District related to State aid, sales tax revenue and property tax revenue
not yet received by year end.

(Continued)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONT’D)

Long-term Debt (Cont’d)

In addition, please refer to Note 4 in the notes to the basic financial statements for more detailed
information on the City’s debt.

The City has a rating of Baal from Moody’s Investors Service, a BBB+ rating form Standard &
Poor’s and a BBB+ from Fitch IBCA.

The New York State Constitution imposes a debt limit of 9 percent of the most recent five-year
average of full valuation of taxable real estate in the City. Certain specified types of obligations are
excluded. The limit as of fiscal year end was $317.3, which is above the City’s outstanding general

obligation debt.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City of Syracuse has several economic factors that affect the ability of the City to address local
fiscal growth or stability. These factors include:

e Reliance on state aid for the City and the City School Dastrict

¢ A dependent school district resulting in high mandated costs and aging buildings

e A stagnant property tax base

» Modestly growing local revenues

o Double-digit percentage increases in employee health care

¢ Retirement system costs significantly higher the last two year’s than in the past. (See notes to the

financial statements for more information.)

In setting the 2005 fiscal year budget, the property tax levy was increased approximately 9.5% for both
the City and the City School District. The combined property tax levy of the City and City School District
for fiscal year 2005 is $72.0 million, compared with the previous year of $65.8 million, exclusive of the

State’s STAR program.

Included in the City’s 2005 budget was $5.0 million in State aid above what had been received in 2004
and previous years. At the time the City’s budget was adopted the State had not yet passed its budget, and
therefore the additional state aid was uncertain. When the State finally passed its budget the City was
appropriated an additional $15.6 million in State aid for 2005.

The Aviation Fund will remain self-sufficient and will not affect the City’s General Fund operations for

2005.

{Continued)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES (CONT’D)

As for the remaining business-type activities, fees for services were budgeted at the same rate for fiscal
year 2005 as were in effect for 2004, and are expected to remain self-sufficient.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors and
creditors with a general overview of Syracuse’s finances and to show an accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the office of the
City’s Commissioner of Finance at City Hall Room 128, 233 E. Washington Street, Syracuse, New York

13202.

Although the City School District is a blended component unit of the City, the City School District
issues a separate financial statement. To obtain this report contact the Chief Financial Officer of the
Syracuse City School District at 725 Harrison Street, Syracuse, New York 13210.

The Syracuse Industrial Agency (SIDA)} and Syracuse Economic Development Corporation
(SEDCO) are discretely presented component units with separately issued financial statements. To obtain
these reports, contact the Economic Development Department at City Hall, Syracuse, New York 13202.

(Concluded)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2004
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Combined
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Tatal Units
ASSETS:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 3 14,048,248 by 1,525,164 15,573,412 $ -
Cash and cash equivalents - 10,335,496 10,335,496 8,033,351
Receivables:
Accounts 4,299,396 6,336,092 10,635,488 -
Taxes (net of allowance of $14,472,962) 4,741,959 - 4,741,959 -
Other - - - 765,337
Loans receivable - due within one year 8,924,933 - 8,924,933 3,011,902
Interest receivable - - - 298,924
Due from other govermments 53,993,021 3,262,835 57,255,856 72,446
Due from primary government - - - 380,188
Due from component units (net of allowance of $5,345,221) 886,273 - 886,273 13,441
Internal balances-due within one year 21,491,954 994,441 22,486,395 -
Inventories - 315,241 315,241 -
Other assets 421,056 333,997 755,053 980,883
Restricted assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 20,836,818 4,353,376 25,190,194 -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,448.202 16,670,052 19,118,254 -
Deferred charges - 1,600210 1,600,210 -
Loan receivable - due in more than one year - - - 16,034,473
Internal balances-due in more than one year - 756,750 756,750
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 106,250,169 11,714,423 117,964,592 913,145
Deprectable, net 225,914,070 107,817,607 333,731,677 19,972,056
TOTAL ASSETS § 464,256,099 g 166,015,684 630,271,783 $ 50,476,145
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 34,623,550 5,582,135 40,205,685 1,856,792
Accrued interest expense 5,774,916 2,155,818 7,930,734 774,041
Due to other governments 138,155 - 138,155 9,305
Due to component units 32,057 8,131 40,188 -
Internal balances 817,250 695,488 1,512,738 -
Deferred revenues 13,442,536 912,428 14,354,964 2,205
Other liabilities 1,182,031 424 1,182,455 -
Long-term liabilities - due within one year 69,739,815 7,034,510 76,774,325 4,619,355
Prue to primary government-due within one year - - - 796,554
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year 227,590,451 51,264,309 278,854,760 31,843,844
Due to primary government-due in more than one year - - - 5,314,930
Total habilities 353,340,761 67,653,243 420,994,004 45,217,026
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 177,401,301 66,700,204 244,101,505 128,962
Restricted for:
Debt service 2,258,383 - 2,258,383 -
Fire Training Center 6,039 - 6,039 -
Project Orange 177,130 - 177,130 -
EMS Training 51,269 - 51,269 -
Trusts and permanent funds 475,309 - 475,309 -
l.oan programs - - - 976,320
Unrestricted (69,454,093) 31,662,237 (37,791,856) 4,153,838
Total net assets 110,915,338 98,362,441 209,277,779 5,259,120
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 3 464,256,099 3 166,015,684 630,271,783 g 50,476,146

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes 1o Basic Financial Statements

16



Ll

SJUSANELS TRIoUREL] olseq 0 S9j0N pu Yodey s tonpny wuspusdepu Suriueduosoy sog

AN GLLLLT60T _§ _IWPZOEBE  §  REESIGOIL § Teak Jo puz 1B §1958E 19N
95SFRCS 10§°6L6'90T LETILEDS 0T 805011 PpaTeIsal sE ‘Tea Jo utmnSaq 1e 519558 JON
{9et°5ZE) BLT'86TL Pr1166°T YEILOE S1aS5E 19U Ul adusy)
- 861°198°psE 026" 060°T B1Z0LL'ESE susall [e1oads pue sig)suen ‘ssnioazs felousd Tejo I,
- LLUGSLT - LLIBSL'E SOOAUEFAOSIA
- - (o00°0p$°2) 000°0YS T SIaJsuel],
- [9€°p8T°E 19€v8p°E - suoTnqLIuOS feide)
- Sor LTy 619°0b1 ob8GLT s3uLres JusUISIAU]
- 150°98€9 - 160°98¢'9 pre [e1opay pajesoljeur)
- I+Z0EL'S0T - YT 0EL'S0T PIE 812]S pareoopeun)
- EEOPLS'E - SEOPLE'E saxe} I
- LPSIS98 TS - L¥$°698°TS SOXE] 35T pure s3feg
- £TC6E96L - ETEBES 6L Swia|l X} pue soxe) Auadolg
ISSNUIDAD] _.N.ECQU
(9EP'SZE) - - - - § _800FSIT S _69S°I£0°S & EI0'lico G
(FeE’0r) - - - - - 906°5T 006°59
(zs8'c69) - - . - SETLT 956°069°C £POpIv'E
018°01Y - - - - ELLOTI'T LOTSICT 0L0°TE0E
- (0T6795°T5€) +01°006 (y80°g9r'€5E) 1009686 §  LIELP960T § &9Z°0pOSOS  LISOPROLCE
- ¥91°006 F91'006 - SO8CILT £T080Y Trr S 1508 901°9£6°TS
- (685'v69) (625769) - - £20°809 TO06LTL FLO1EP R
- PHTTES PHT'TES - 0$7°901 - 685°S81Y §65°65FE
- TILTLRT TIL'TLET - 8LERG - £EI0SS €T G6L'SLLTT
- (eoz'o11°1) (coz'o11°1) - LL1'80ST - 869°059°5T 8£0°692°6T
- (PBO°EIY ECE) - (+80°€o% £5€) 961'£88°9 POEGEN 601 LTBYTS P L1F'0I6 €8p
- (6195211} . (6Z1°95Z°11) - - - 6Z1°9SZT°11
- {LLETHOT) - (LLETFO'TT) - LTT0GE - Y0STE6°TI
- (ceo'9z68r 1) - ($E0'9T6'841) - 666°9L9°T8 182°561 SIB'RSLIET
- (66t°507°8) - (66t°50T°R) 0£5°96 106°6tY 996°60t 9681916
- (cog‘s0v°) - (£0£'60¥°) - F99°F£0°31 T90°91Z°1 6T0°099°PZ
- (so1°zTL) - ($912z4) - - - §91°7TL
- (ZTH°LR6'PT) - (ZTy'LR6'PT) SHSLIFY 0ZL L] §9Z°0ZP'S $56'6669E
- (LLvi6se°T) - (LLv'ese) - - 01L'9L22 L81°9£0'
- (LzL'69t"PE) - (LTL691"FE) - SET6r1 16819 PSE089°FE
- (61¥° 105 6P) - (617 105°6) - SSESLIT SE0°P6S'T EIR0LTFS
- (1es'e86bs)  § - § (1e5°e86%S) § 8IT'69E  §  ZO¥'8T0C §  EISTO6ET §  +9S°ILLZ9 §
Uy _.m.—o.._... mu._ﬁ._?m.—udq SONIANSY mno.ﬁﬁﬁmhﬁoo m:Omuﬁn_mhuﬁoU SA0IAdag JO) momdonmkmn
usuodurory addyssauisng [BIUSUILISAQL) puUe sjuelny pue SYeI0 saBrey) pue
JUIUALIZADL) ATRUILIJ reuden Swpeiadp saury ‘seag
§955Y 13N Ul saFuey;) $aTURAY WeIF0i]

pue anuaaxy (ssuedxy )} 1oN

SLINO ENINOIWOD TYI1OL
Aously [emauny Ueqlp) aSnvIAg
uoneiodie]) weurdo[eas(] oTLIOU0OT 8N0RILG
AovaBy Juaidoppas(] [RINSIPU] 3SRORIAS
suun steduos

LNFANIIAOD ATV TVLOL

satanoe adAy-ssaursng [e1o0],
20IMl2g poO]
Pmag
e
uonRIAY
'SAMIANYY adAl-ssaursng

SONIANSR [RUsLILIRA0S [B10 ]

109p ULI)-FUo Uo 1SaIsyuy

uvonepodsuen (1dng

uonRonpY

UOTJeIDa] pue 2Imny

SOOIALAS ANIUNIITOD PUE SUIOE]

wstdo[aasp sTUIOU0IY

uonepodsueI]

&ayes orpqnd 1010

usunredap ang

wewedap solog

yoddns ueunusaod [eisusn
ISARIATIOY [EIUAWLDAOL)
SINFANYAAOD ANV

$00Z ‘0€ ANNL QAANT IVAX THL 4O
SHLLIAILDY A0 INTFIWILVIS
HHOA MIN “ISNOVIAS 40 ALID



SUSWRETE TETOUEL,] STS] OF Sej0 PUE HOG9 g S1ONpITy JUSpUSdepU] SmAURHUIeIoY 533G

-1

SOVBZLLEL RS TAR AT A §  FEZTOTHOR S =S06ILFE $ EELZi69t 3 SHDNYTYE ANMLY ANV SHLLITEVTT TY.LOL
65T 060°8Y v9S'6LTT - S86'809°S PLOELOET FEFBTILL sYUReq PUTY €10,
60L'969'S [ $99°9Z1 - - - PrO‘0LS S L paveuSisapun
60'PP6S - . 829'859°¢ - POp'SLT pareudisag
TPRAIIRIIUN
60E'sLy 60E'SLE - - - - PNy Justeunsd PUE SIS J0] paatosay
€8€°852°7 $62'585°1 - - 880'€L9 - 1q8p paplioy 107 PaAesay
692°1¢ 692718 Sunner], ALY 0] paaLesay
0Ll - - - - 0EL°LLT S3URI() peloiq Toy patesay
6EG°9 - - - - 609 Iejua) Sumner] s, Ioj paalsssy
POE L6891 - - - POc L6891 - seelord [endes papuoq Joj paarassy
FZ0'P8E'e $62°26 - LSE'OrE T89°T0SS 069°8% $IOUBIGUMOUD JO] PIATASEY
_mooﬁmHmm punyg
SPTGEL P8 6BEOLY'S L16006T1 6V TS FE Y66 SST 1T L66V6L6] samIfIgE e ]
[E0Z8TT - 1602811 - - - SSUINIQRI[ 1O
| EAAN I 4 - - - - 1L Ir e SUNTETo 23URINSUT-J{2g
61509 - - TETERE - LZT'1TT s32Uasqe pajesuaduios patusay
SO&'01F'T - SO501F° 1 - - slllejsks TUSLIATAL 0 S0P §IUnoury
SR9'PLERL LELSOF'Y EE6VITS - 000°88 900598 SANURARI pALIsa(]
L50°2¢ LLr's 088'€T - - - syum wauedinos of sag
SSI'gEL - LEO'EL - - 260'59 sjusunuzacd Isyic o3 ang
725°1¢8 Isv'py I£5'6¢ - 05Z°L18 oLz spuny taio o3 3ng
000'00Z°¢ - - - 000'00T°€ - s[qeked saou uonedionue puog
000°00€"E - - 000°00€°E - - s210U uonedronie xe]
000°'000°81 - - C00°00E P 1 - 000'00L°E s[qeAed sajou votredionie anusasy
055°EZ9'vE $  pISL00°L 3 SorIbEZ $  TSOLIP'SL $  prL0S0'L $  5.L°008°8 $ sasuadxe pensace pue slqeded sunossy
samger]
SHONYIVE ANAA ANV STILITEVIT
SOp'6eT CEl §_ _ESP9SLL $ _L1600621 AT AT $ _BSQ6TZYE 3 Ll Zigot $ SLHSSV IVLOL
950" 1T - - 96481k 0922 - §10858 PO
£22'988 - (20330 . 000°88 65T'EET (1ZZ'spE"s§ 30 soumemol(e Jo you) sum wsuodutes weg ang
6C8'68E05 £89°65L 969°LLE SPS'EOL'CT SIPPR0T 068 7980T sRuaAc BiRo woxy ang
972'909°12 SE6°05€'T 0Lz V66°€E80°T1 LESTIOER 066608 SPUTY 19130 WIoK 30
TPYPeE's 067962 - 668'E1Z°E - ESPPR8Y (296'ZLP ' (§ 30 SOURMOI[E JO 10U) S]GEATEDR] saxe ]
SLI'ELZY ELL'EELE - - - SOP'GEL'L S[RATIZRT SJUTIO00Y
£E5'FTI6R - EE6'PTE8 . - - a]qRAIADAT SUBO']
202'8rbT 26T'¢1 VOO'EEr'T - - - sjus[esinba Yses PUe Yses pajeTnsay
S18'9€80C TP1'v8s’( - . 9LYTERLL 000°00€° 1 $1usteAnba yses pue yses paolnsal pajoog
SFT'RPOY T 8 TER'9iS 3 - s - $  081'0r8S 3 SE9'189°L $ sirajeatnba 1ysea pur ysea patooq
SLASSY
Spuny spung Wswdopasg st [ooysg AR pun pumg
[FIUIURLRACD [PILUMILA0D Lpununes spaloly TeI3tany
[®0L Jofeunion SOUSASY [R103Tg erdesy
00T ‘0€ ANOC
SANNA TV INTANIIACD
LIAHS 4ONVIVE

MAOA AIAN "ASNOVIAS 40 ALID



CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2004

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 48,090,259

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets, net of associated accumulated depreciation, nsed in
governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported

in the funds, 332,164,239
Accounts receivable not reported in funds 415,509
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, compensated absences, capital

ieave obligations, due to retirement systems, judgements and claims,

environmental remediation and other long-term liabilites are not due and payable

in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (268,673,121}
Certain deferred revenue items, 4,693,368
Accrued interest is not reported in the funds. (5,774,916)

Total net assets of governmental activities $ 110,915,338

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (7,432,501)

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities is different because:

Governental funds report all capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of certain assets 1s allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation

exceeded capital outlays in the current period, (2,684,929)
Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmentat funds and thus

contribute to the change in fund balance. In the Statement of Net Assets, however,

issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect the Statement of Activities.

Similarly, repayment of principal 1s an expenditure in the governmental funds but

reduces the liability in the Statement of Net Assets.

Debt issued:
Bonds payable (20,054.452)

Repayments:

Bond principal 21,130,208

1,075,756

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds, whereas
m governmental funds, an interest expenditure 1s reported when due. 191,605

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated
absences and other employee benefits, do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 9,589,129

Governmental funds only report the disposal of capital assets to the extent proceeds are
received from the sale. In the Statement of Activities, a gain or loss is reported for
each disposal. This is the amount of the difference between the proceeds

recerved and the loss on the disposal of fixed assets. (39,591)
Revenues in the Statement of Activitics that do not provide current financial

resources are not reported in the governmental funds. (392,335)

Net change in net assets of governmental activities $ 307,134

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statemerits
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2004
Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
City Scheo)
District-Food
Aviation ‘Water Sewer Total City Senvice Taotal
ABSSETS:
Currens:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents $ - 1 1,089,600 $ 435,564 b3 1,525,164 - $ 1,525,164
Cash 10,335,496 - - 10,335,496 - 10,335,496
Accounts receivable 2,292,924 3,080,163 963,005 6,336,092 - 6,336,092
Due from other governments 2,721,932 14,077 - 2,736,009 526,826 1,262,835
Due from other funds 60,500 - - 60,500 933,941 994,441
Inventeries - - - - 315,241 315,241
Prepaid expenses 333,997 - - 333,997 - 333,997
Total current assets 15,744,849 4,183 840 1,398,569 21,327,258 1,776,008 23,103,266
Nencurrent:
Pooled restricted cash - 2,945,263 1,408,113 4,353,376 - 4,353,376
Restricied cash and cash equivalents 15,910,576 759,476 - 16,670,052 - 16,670,052
Deferred charges 1,586,064 10,902 3,244 1,600,21¢ - 1,600,210
Due from other funds 756,750 - - 756,750 - 756,750
Capital assels (net) 99,775,800 15,991,217 3,247,706 119,014,723 517,307 119,532,030
Total noncurrent assets 118,029,150 19,706,858 4,659,063 142,395,111 517,307 142,912,418
TOTAL ASBETS $ 133,774,039 $ 23,890,698 6,057,632 3 163,722,369 2,293,315 8 166,015,684
LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,226,968 s 1,474,861 s 249,718 s 4,951,547 630,588 13 3,582,135
Bond anticipation notes payable 1,632,000 . - 1,632,000 - 1,632,000
Accrued interest 951,669 117,168 21,950 1,680,787 - 1,000,787
Due to other funds 695,488 - - 695,488 - 695,488
Due to component unit - 8,131 - 8,131 - §,131
Current portion of bonds payable 2,875,528 850,162 511,59} 4,237,281 - 4,237,281
Amounis due to retirement systems 848 805 292 1,945 101,416 103,361
Agerued compensated absences 169,277 22,074 13,315 204,666 105,637 310,303
Self-insurance claims 175,672 257,330 97,513 530,515 221,050 751,565
Deferved revenue 60,500 35,758 59,420 155,678 - 155,678
Other liabilities - - - - A24 474
Total current liabiiities 9,787,950 2,766,289 953,199 13,508,038 1,059,115 14,567,153
Noncurrent:
Bonds - net of current portion 33,940,352 13,059,028 2,524,921 49,524,301 - 49,524,301
Accrued interest 1,065,031 - - 1,065,031 - 1,065,031
Amounts due to retirenent systems 3,001 2,850 1,033 6,884 44,283 51,1687
Accrued compensated absences - 258,744 87,064 345,808 - 345,808
Self-insurance claims 429,818 663,105 250,110 1,343,033 - 1,343,033
Deferred revenue 156,750 - - 756,750 - 756,750
Total nonewrent fiabilities 36,194,952 13,983,727 2,863,128 53,041,807 44,283 53,086,090
Total liabilites 45,982,902 16,750,016 3,816,927 66,549,845 1,103,398 67,653,243
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capilal assets, net of related debt 61,346,407 2,596,338 1,555,528 65,498,273 517,307 66,015,580
Unrestricted:
Designated - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Unclesignated 26,444,730 3,544,344 685,177 36,674,251 672,610 31,346,861
Total net assets 87,791,137 7,140,682 2,240,705 97,172,524 1,189,917 98,362,441
TOTAL LIABILITIES AMD NET ASSETS $ 133,774,039 $ 23,890,698 $ 6,057,632 $ 163,722,369 2,293,315 3 166,015,684




CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Landing fees
Patking rents
Terminal rents
Concession
Fees and pemmits
Miscellaneous

Totsl operating revenues

GPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services
Administration
Depreciation
Uncollectible accounts

Total operating expenses

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOS S}

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Grants received
Grant programs
Passenger Facility charges
Donated commodities
Investment income
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND OPERATING TRANSFERS

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS
RESTATED FOR SEWER FUND

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

Business-type Aclivities

Enterprise Funds
City School
District - Food
Aviation Water Sewer Total City Service Total

§ - s 13,140,445 4,171,404 3 17,311,849 7,129,062 § 24,440,911
3,484,059 - 3,484,059 - 3,484,059
5,330,330 - - 5,330,330 5,330,330
7,235,203 - - 7,236,203 - 7,236,203
5,313,690 - - 5,313,690 5,313,690
- 314,958 - 314,958 314,958

1,908 94,730 14,185 110,823 - 110,823
21,366,190 13,550,133 4,185,589 39,101,912 7,129,062 46,230,974
7,707,911 9,663,636 2,696,046 20,067,593 3,418,179 23,485,772
7,939,326 455,553 668 8,395,547 4,866,867 13,262,414
8,769,178 477,915 242,234 9,489,377 146,628 9,636,005
69,045 975,123 345,417 1,389,585 - £,389,585
24,485,460 11,572,227 3,284,415 39,342,102 8,431,674 47,773,776
(3,119,270) 1,977,906 901,174 (240,150 (1,302,612) (1,542,802)
2,508,177 98,378 106,250 2,712,805 - 2,712,805
{2,508,177) {98,378) (106,250) (2,712,305) - (2,712,805)
4,284,468 - - 4,284,468 - 4,284,463
- - - - 608,023 608,023

120,402 13,292 12,721 146,415 204 145,619
(2,275,401 (105,194) (68,930) (2,449,535} ; (2,449,525)
3,129,469 (91,902) (56,209) 1,981,358 608,227 2,589,585
(989,301) 1,885,004 244,965 1,741,168 (694,385) 1,046,783

3,484,361 - 3,484,361 3,484,361
- (2,100,000) (440.000) (2,540,000 - (2,540,000)
2,494,560 (213,996) 404,965 2,685,529 {694,385) 1,991,144

85,296,577 7,354,678 1,835,740 94,486,995 1,884,302 96,371,297

3 87,791,137 $ 7,140,682 2,240,705 3 97,172,524 1,189,917 3 98,362,441

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from custormers

Payments to vendors

Payments to employees

Internal activity-receipts and (payments) with ether funds - net

Claims paid
Other payments
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Operating subsidics and transfers to other funds
Payments to other governments
Net cash utilized in noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from capital debt
Caputal contributions
Purchases of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Other receipts
Met cash utilized in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends received/
Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

Recenciliation of operating income (loss) te net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation expense
Uncollectible accounts
Noncash collections of accounts receivable
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Deferred charges
Due from other funds
Duz from ¢ther governments
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Amounts due to retirement systems
Self-insurance claims
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to Basic Financial S1atements

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds

City School
Total - District -
Aviation Water Sewer City Food Service Total

$ 21335075 % 12540219 $ 4,046,527 $ 37921821 § 7209140 5 45130961
(10,542,601} (3,510,492) (749,935) (14,803,028} (2,419,252) (17,222,280)
(4,667,660) (5,257.803) (1,631,597) (11,557,060) (5.141,433) (16,698,493)
118,590 - - 118,590 381,352 499,942
(755,262) (1,151,797 (304,075) (2,211,134} - 2,211,134)
- (205,838) (68,903) (274,741) - (274,741)

5,488,142 2,414,289 1,292,017 9,194,448 29,307 9,324,255
- (2,100,000) (440,000) (2,540,000) . (2,540,000}
- - - - (93) £93)
- (2,100,000) {440,000} (2,540,000) (93) (2,540,093)

6,315,487 1,771,729 1,057,623 9,144 839 - 9,144,839
1,213,576 - - 1,213,676 - 1,213,676
(4,189.363) (2.492,365) (891,773) (7.573.501) (29.918) (7,603,419)
(9,120,619) (885,283) (651,830) (10,657,732) - (10,657,732)
(2,466,781) {100,241} (73,946) (2,64,968) - (2,640,968)
4,172,658 - - 4,172,658 - 4,172,658
(4,074,942) (1,706,160) (559,926) 6,341,028) (29,918) {6,370,946)
120,402 13,292 12,721 146,415 204 146,619
1,533,602 {1,378,579) 304,812 459,835 - 459,833
24,712,470 6,172,918 1,538 865 32,424,253 . 32,424,253
$ 26,246,072 $ 4,794,339 5 1,843,677 $  32,884.088 3 - $ 32,884,088
3 (3,119,270 $§ 1,977,906 3 901,174 3 (246,190 S (1,302,612) § (1,542,802)
8,769,178 477915 242,284 9,489,377 146,628 9,636,003
69,045 975,123 345417 1,389,585 - 1,389,585
{75,000) - - (75.000) - ¢75,000)
104,386 (1,008,478} (206,381} (1,110,473} - (1.110,473)

75,988 66,443 - 142,431 . 142,431
118,590 8,131 . 126,721 381,352 508,073

- (9,003) - (9,003) 80,078 71,075

- - - - 581,868 581,868

(29.868) - - (29.868) - (29.868)

{449,570) 554,596 100,321 205,347 89,899 295246
(26,281} (440,014) (56,054} (522.349) (7,936) (530,285)
111,445 (169,481) (83,947) (141,983) 56,792 (85,191}

- (26,416} (18,116) {44,532) 3,738 (40,794)

(60,501) 7,567 67,319 14,385 - 14,385

$ 5,438,142 $ 2,414,289 $ 1,292,017 § 9,194,448 $ 29,807 5 9,224,255
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

During the year ended June 30, 2004 the Aviation Fund incurred accretion of $222.086
(included in interest expense) on capital appreciation bonds which are included in bonds payable.

‘The Aviation Fund agreed to accept machinery and equipment in lieu of cash for a
$75,000 payment on an account receivable.

RECONCILIATION OF RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED CASH TO TOTAL

CASH - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Beginning of Year:
Aviation Fund $ 9,479,675 $ 15,232,795 $ 24,712,470
Water Fund 2,783,224 3,389,694 6,172,918
Sewer Fund 476,883 1,061,982 1,538,865
Total beginning of year $ 12,739,782 $ 19,684,471 $ 32,424,253
End of Year:
Aviation Fund $§ 10,335,496 $§ 15,910,576 $ 26,246,072
Water Fund 1,089,600 3,704,739 4,794,339
Sewer Fund 435,564 1,408,113 1,843,677
Total end of year $ 11,860,660 $ 21,023,428 $ 32,884,088

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2004
Syracuse Syracuse Syracuse
Industrial Economic Urban
Development Development Renewal
Agency Corporation Agency Total
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents b 4,261,474 3 3,510.136 261,741 $ 8,033,351
Other receivables 699,204 24 728 41,405 765,337
Loans receivable-current portion 2,679,965 331,937 - 3,011,902
Interest receivable 293,791 5133 - 298,924
Due from other governments - - 72,446 72,446
Due frem primary government 340,000 - 40,188 380,188
Due from other component units - - 13,441 13,441
Other assets 980,883 - - 980,883
Loans recetvable - long-term portion 14,027,181 2,007,292 - 16,034,473
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 50,000 770,145 93,000 913,145
Depreciable, net 1,689,192 18,246,902 35,962 19,972,056
TOTAL ASSETS $ 25,021,690 $ 24,896,273 558,183 $ 50,476,146
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,718,441 b 138,351 - ¥ 1,856,792
Accrued interest expense 456,673 317,368 - 774,041
Due to other governments - - 9,305 9,305
Deferred revenue 2,205 - - 2,205
Due to primary govemment 421,239 92,620 282,695 796,554
MNaon-current liabilities:
Due within one year 2.073.000 2,546,355 - 4,619,355
Due within more than one year 18,562,000 13,281,844 - 31,843,844
Due to primary government - long-term portion 1,678,645 3,636,285 - 5,314,930
Total liabilities 24 912,203 20,012,823 292,000 45,217,026
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets - - 128,962 128,962
Restricted for toan programs 302,302 674018 - 976,320
Unrestricted {192,815) 4,209,432 137,221 4,153,838
Total net assets 109,487 4,883,450 266,183 5,259,120
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 25021,690 § 24,896,273 558,183 $ 50476146

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Syracuse, New York (the City) was incorporated in 1848 and operates under an
elected Mayor. The Common Council is the elected legislative body and consists of a Council
President and four members elected at large plus five district members. The City provides service
of general government, public works, public safety, education, community enrichment and
economic development to its approximately 150,000 residents, and operates Syracuse - Hancock
International Airport which serves approximately two million passengers annually from the region.

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government
units, with the exception of the Syracuse Economic Development Corporation as discussed in
Note 1.A. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for the proprietary funds,
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board
(APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.
For enterprise funds, GASB Statement Nos. 20 and 34 provide the City the option of electing to
apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. The City has elected not to apply
those pronouncements. The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant
accounting polices are discussed in subsequent subsections of this note.

A. Financial Reporting Entity
The City’s financial reporting entity comprises the following:
Primary Government: City of Syracuse, New York

Blended Component Unit: Syracuse City School District (the District)

Discretely Presented
Component Units: Syracuse Economic Development Corporation

Syracuse Industrial Development Agency
Syracuse Urban Renewal Agency

(Continued)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of
GASB Statement Numbers 14 and 39, The Financial Reporting Entity, and Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, respectively, including all component
units of which the City appointed a voting majority of the units’ board; the City is either able to
impose its will on the unit or a financial benefit or burden relationship exists.

Biended Component Units:

Blended component units are separate entities that meet the component unit criteria
described above and whose governing body is the same or substantially the same as the
Common Council, or the component unit provides services entirely to the City. These
component units” funds are blended into those of the City’s by appropriate activity type to
compose the primary government presentation.

Syracuse City School District (the District) - The District is governed by the Education
Law and other laws of the State of New York. The governing body is the Board of Education,
which 1s an elected body. The District is not a separate legal entity and does not have the power
to levy taxes or issue bonds. Its budget is subject to approval by the City Common Council.
The City 1s financially accountable for the District and funds any operating deficits. The
District is primarily included in the basic financial statements as a spectal revenue fund in the
fund financial statements. In the government-wide statements the District is included in the

governmental activitics.

Discretely Presented Component Units:

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the
component unit criteria described above but do not meet the criteria for blending. The
following organizations are discretely presented component units:

Syracuse Industrial Development Agency (SIDA) - SIDA is a public benefit
governmental agency established to enhance economic development in the City. SIDA’s
programs include issuing industrial revenue bonds and making HUD 108 loans. The Mayor
appoints a voting majority of the governing body and SIDA’s activities are controlled by the
City of Syracuse. Separate audited financial statements are prepared for SIDA and reports may
be obtained by writing to Syracuse Industrial Development Agency, City Hall, Syracuse, New
York 13202. SIDA has a fiscal year which ends December 31.

(Continued)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

A. Financial Reporting Entity (Cont'd)

Syracuse Economic Development Corporation (SEDCO) - SEDCO is a not-for-profit
corporation established by the City to foster development ventures in the City. SEDCO's
financial statements are in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applicable to not-for-profit organizations. SEDCO loans funds
through Direct and Entrepreneur Loan Programs and the Urban Development Action Grant
Program. The Direct and Entrepreneur Loan Programs are funded from annual entitlement
grants from the City. The Urban Development Action Grant represents funds received by
the City and passed through (loaned) to SEDCQO. The City is financially accountable for
SEDCO and the Mayor appoints the voting majority of the governing body. Separate
audited financial statements are prepared for SEDCO and reports may be obtained by writing
to Syracuse Economic Development Corporation, City Hall, Syracuse, New York 13202.
SEDCO has a fiscal year which ends December 31.

Syracuse Urban Renewal Agency (SURA) - SURA is an agency used to account for federal,
state and local capital grant funds for the redevelopment of land in the City of Syracuse. The
City is financially accountable for SURA. The Mayor appoints the voting majority of the
governing body.

Only footnote disclosures relating to the primary government are included in the basic
financial statements. The footnote disclosures relating to SIDA, SEDCO and SURA are not

included.

The Syracuse Housing Partnership, Inc., Rebuild Syracuse, and Friends of the Syracuse
Commussion for Women, Inc. are excluded from the financial reporting entity. Although the
Mayor appoints the majority of the goveming bodies of these agencies, the City is not
financially accountable, lacks any other financial interdependencies and cannot exercise any
oversight responsibility.

(Continued)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities display information about the
reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for
fiduciary funds. The City’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements by
type (pension, private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for
the benefit of a third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, ctc.)
and cannot be used to finance activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not
incorporated into the government-wide statements. The statements distinguish between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to exteral parties for goods or
services. Amounts reported in the Statement of Activities as program revenue include charges
to customers for goods, services or privileges provided, operating grants and contributions and
capital grants and contributions. Program revenues must be directly associated with a
governmental or business-type activity. General revenues support all activities and programs.
All taxes are considered general revenues.

Fund Financial Statementis:

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which
1s considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity or net
assets, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the
governmental and proprietary categories. Nonmajor funds are summarized into a single
column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the
following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least ten percent of the corresponding total for
all funds of that category or type; and

b. Total assets, lmabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least five percent of the corresponding
total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
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B. Basis of Presentation (Cont’d)

Governmental Fund Types:

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and is always
classified as a major fund. It is used to account for all activities except those legally or
administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. General
operations of the City School District are reported in the special revenue funds.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund 1s used to account for the accumulation of resources and
payment of general obligation bond principal and interest. Both the City and the
Syracuse City School District maintain debt service funds.

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used
for the acquisition, construction or renovation of major capital facilities or equipment
other than those financed by proprietary funds. The principal sources of financing are
from the sale of bonds or issuance of bond anticipation notes. Both the City and the
Syracuse City School District maintain capital projects funds.

Permanent Fund

The permanent fund accounts for assets held by the City pursuant to a trust
agreement. The principle portion of this fund type must remain intact, but the earnings
may be used to achieve the objectives of the fund.
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B. Basis of Presentation (Cont’d)

Proprietary Fund Types:

Proprietary funds focus on the determination of changes in net assets, financial
position and cash flows and are classified as either enterprise or internal service. The
City has no internal service funds.

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the
general public. These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the
measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to the
private sector. The reporting entity includes the following enterprise funds:

Water Fund

The Water Fund 1s used to account for providing water to the public.

Sewer Fund

The Sewer Fund is used to account for wastewater and sanitation services to the
public.

Aviation Fund

The Aviation Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures to operate
Syracuse-Hancock International Airport.

Food Service Fund

This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food service
operations of the School District.

Fiduciary Fund Types (Not included in government-wide statements):

Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the City in a purely custodial capacity.
Since agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e., assets equal liabilities), they do not
involve the measurement of results of operations.
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B. Basis of Presentation (Cont’d)

Fiduciary Fund Types (Not included in government-wide statements) (Cont’d):

Pension Trust Funds

Pension trust funds are used to report resources that are held in trust for the

members and beneficiaries of pension plans.

Private Purpose Funds

Private purpose funds are trust arrangements under which the principal or

interest benefit specific individuals, organizations or other governments, but not the
reporting government.

Major and Nonmajor Funds

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Major Funds:

General Fund - See above for description.
Special Revenue funds:
City School District - This fund is used to account for the education and
transportation of pupils within the City. This fund
includes the District’s General Fund and Special

Aid Fund.

Community Development - This fund is used to account for Federal funds
received for community development purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - See above for description.
Proprietary Funds:

Aviation - See above for description.
Water - See above for description
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B. Basis of Presentation (Cont’d)
Major and Nonmajor Funds (Cont’d)
Fiduciary Fund Types (Not included in government-wide statements) (Cont’d):
Nonmajor Funds:
= Spectal Revenue Funds:
Special Grants
Special Assessment Districts
Local Development

Oil and Flushing
Miscellaneous Trust Funds

Debt Service Fund

s  Permanent Funds:

Francis Hendrick’s
The Ed Smith School Fund

Proprietary Funds:

Sewer
Food Service

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded
regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus as defined in item b. below,
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C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Cont’d)

Measurement Focus (Cont’d)

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or

the “economic resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize & “current financial resources” measurement focus.
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balances as their
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. Proprietary and fiduciary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus.

The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of
operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and
cash flows. All assets and liabilities {(whether current or noncurrent) associated with
their activities are reported. Proprietary and fiduciary fund equity is classified as net

assets.

¢. Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore,
measurement focus 1s not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities,
both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds and agency funds are
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when “measurable and available.”
Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current period or soon enough to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City generally considers most revenues to be
available if they are collected within sixty days after year end. Expenditures (including
capital outlays) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Cont’d)

Basis of Accounting (Cont’d)

All proprietary and fiduciary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting.

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

In accordance with the City Charter, the annual operating budget includes the General
Fund, City School District Fund exclusive of grants, the Aviation Fund and the Debt Service
Fund. The budget for the Debt Service Fund is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The budget for other
governmental funds is prepared on a non-GAAP budgetary basis in that encumbrances are
charged against appropriations in the year the commitment is incurred and payroll costs are on a
cash basis. These differences are not material. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a
management control device during the year. For the Capital Projects Fund and grants
accounted for in the City School District Fund, long-term budgets covering the anticipated life
of the project or grant are adopted by the Common Council at the time of approval.

The City appropriates a total expenditure budget based on projected revenues and
surplus from the preceding year. The budget allocations among the various organizational units
in the governmental funds, along with any amendments made by the Common Council, are
included in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget
and Actual (Budgetary Basis).

All unencumbered budget appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The General Fund's
budget is adopted on a departmental basis, which is the level of control at which expenditures
may not legally exceed appropriations. On a budgetary basis, current year encumbrances are
included with expenditures, while expenditures of prior years' encumbrances are excluded.

The Common Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data
reported in the financial statements:

e By April 8" the Mayor submits to the Common Council operating budgets for the
City and City School District, including the means of financing them, for the fiscal
year commencing the following July 1%,

¢ Following a public hearing on the proposed budget, the Common Council must adopt
the proposed or amended budget no later than May g™,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Cont’d)

¢  Any amendments approved by the Common Council are presented to the Mayor for
his consideration. Should the Mayor object to any amendment, the Common Council
has an opportunity to override the Mayor’s objection until June.

e The Mayor has the authority to transfer budgeted amounts between accounts within a
department, but increases to department totals must be approved by the Common
Council.

e Budget amendments occurring subsequent to the adoption of the budget are drafted
and reviewed by the Budget Director and submitted to the Common Council for
approval. If amendments are passed by the Council, they are submitted to the Mayor
for final approval.

E. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market accounts and certificates of
deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

F. Receivables

In the government-wide statements, recetvables consist of all revenues earned at year-
end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon
historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for
the governmental activities include property taxes, sales and use taxes, mortgage taxes,
franchise taxes and grants. Business-type activities report fee for service receivables and grant
related earnings as their major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include
revenue accruals such as property taxes, sales and use taxes, mortgage taxes, franchise tax, and
grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both measurable and
available. Nonexchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund
financial statements in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, but not
deferred in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis.
Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days since
they would be considered both measurable and available. Proprietary fund material receivables
consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Fee for service receivables and
grant related earnings compose the majority of proprietary fund receivables. Allowances for
uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of
accounts receivable.
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G. Inventories

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the Food Service Fund, included as a proprietary

fund, are recorded at cost on a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of surplus food, at stated
value which approximates market.

H. Capital Assets (Fixed Assets)

The accounting treatment of property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on

whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and
whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are defined by the
City, with the exception of the District, as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000
and a useful life of two or more years. The District capitalizes fixed assets with an
initial cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful life of two or more years. All
fixed assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is
unavailable, except for donated fixed assets which are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Prior to July 1, 2001, infrastructure assets were not
capitalized. The City opted for early implementation of infrastructure reporting
retroactive to 1980, These assets have been valued at estimated historical cost.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest costs incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities, if any, 1s included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. Interest capitalized for the year ended June 30, 2004 amounted to

$517,530.

The City has works of art such as maps and valuable documents, paintings,
sculptures, exhibits, monuments and statues. These items are not capitalized because
they are not held for financial gain, are protected and preserved, and the City’s policy
requires any sale proceeds to be used to acquire other collection items.
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H. Capital Assets (Fixed Assets) (Cont’d)
Government-wide Statements (Cont’d)

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets is recorded as an allocated expense
in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement
of Net Assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets” estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method of depreciation beginning in the first year after completion or
acquisition of the asset, except for the Aviation Fund which begins depreciating assets
on the date of acquisition. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as

follows:
Buildings 40 years
Parking garages 20 years
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years
Improvements - land and building 20 years
Improvements - parking garages 10 years
Infrastructure 20-100 years
Fumniture 10 years
Vehicles 3-5 years

Fund Financial Statements:

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund
upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for
the same as in the government-wide statements.

1. Compensated Absences

The City’s policies regarding vacation time permit employees to accumulate earned but
unused vacation leave. The liability for these compensated absences is broken out and recorded
as current and long-term debt in the government-wide statements. The current portion of this
liability 15 estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial statements, governmental
funds report only the compensated absence liability payable from expendable and available
financial resources. The proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.
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J. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type
Statement of Net Assets. Material bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bond. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. Long-term debt is not
reported as a liability of the governmental funds and any debt issued is reported as another
financing source in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.
Payments of principal and interest on general long-term debt are recognized when paid from a
governmental fund. Issuance costs are reported as a General Fund expenditure.

K. Equity Classifications
Government-wide Statements
Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets - consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets - all other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further
classified as reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated and
undesignated.  Reserved fund balance represents amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Designations of
fund balance represent management plans that are subject to change. Proprietary fund equity is
classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

L. Retirement

The City provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its regular full-time
employees through contributions to the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement
System (ERS), New York State and Local Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) and Policemen's
and Firemen's Retirement System (PFRS). The Systems provide various plans and options,
some of which require employee contributions. The Retirement Systems compute the cost of
retirement benefits based upon their respective fiscal years: ERS and PFRS - Aprill to
March 31, and TRS - July 1 to June 30.

M. Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses

Property Tax

The property tax levy is approved by the Common Council in May for the following
year on the basis of the final assessment roll of July 1. The City bills and collects its own
property taxes including school taxes and the property taxes levied by Onondaga County.
City and school taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1 and are
payable in four equal installments in July, October, January and Apnl. County taxes are
attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 and are payable in four equal
installments in January, April, July and October. City and School District property tax
revenues are recognized when levied to the extent they result in current receivables, less an
allowance for amounts estimated to be uncollectible. The allowance for City School District
taxes 1s offset against City taxes as the City guarantees 100% of the levy to the School
District. The City does not guarantee the collection of County taxes. The City is required to
pay the County only when, and if, the tax is collected. In addition, the receivables in the
governmental funds which are not available to finance current operations are offset by the
recording of a deferred revenue. Deferred revenues are recognized as revenue in the fiscal
year that such amounts become available. In the fund financial statements, property taxes
are recorded as revenue in the period levied to the extent they are collected within 60 days of
year-end. In the govermment-wide financial statements, property taxes are recorded as
revenue when levied, less an allowance for uncollectible amounts.

Assessment Tax Revenue

In the fund financial statements, sidewalk and sewer assessments are not considered
currently collectible due to the City's policy of granting deferments for a period of up to ten
years with 7% interest. Assessments receivable of $3,123,577 at June 30, 2004 are offset by
deferred revenue and included in the Debt Service Fund. In the governmental financial
statements, assessment revenue is recorded when it is added to the property tax levy
annually. Only the portion of the assessments due in the current period is accrued as

revenue, less an allowance for uncollectible amounts.
(Continued)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

M. Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses (Cont’d)

Intergovernmental Revenues - Grants

For both the government-wide and fund financial statements, the City follows the
policy that an expenditure of funds is the prime factor for determining the release of grant
funds; revenue is recognized at the time of the expenditure of funds. If release of grant
funds is not contingent upon expenditure of funds, revenue is recorded when received or
when the grant becomes an obligation of the grantor.

Other Revenues

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds record licenses and permits,
certain charges for services, fines and forfeits and miscellaneous revenues on the cash basis
because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are
recorded on a modified accrual basis. Sales tax revenues are recorded on a modified accrual
basis and include the portion of sales tax revenue attributable to the current year but remitted
to the State, and ultimately to the City within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year. In
the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds, other revenues, if
material, are recognized when eamed.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. It also includes all revenue and expenses
not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. The
principal operating revenue of the Water and Sewer funds is charges to customers for sales
and service. The principal operating revenues of the Aviation Fund are landing fees, parking
fees, terminal rents and concession revenue. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds
include the cost of sales and service, administrative expenses, uncollectible accounts and

depreciation on capital assets.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by activity for
both governmental and business-type activities. Expenses are recognized when they are
incurred. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with an activity and are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Certain indirect expenses are allocated among
the activities, if possible.
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M. Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses (Cont’d)

Expenditures/Expenses (Cont’d)
In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:

Governmental Funds - By character: Current (further classified by function)
Debt service
Interest on debt
Capital outlays

Proprietary Fund - By operating and nonoperating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial
resources. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred. However debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is
due. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are not recognized. Proprietary funds report
expenses relating to use of economic resources. Expenses are recognized when they are
incurred. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are recorded in proprietary funds.

Interfund Transfers

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are
classified as interfund transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, transfers
within governmental activities and within business-type activities are eliminated upon
consolidation.

Payments Between the City and Component Units

Resource flows (except those that affect the statement of net assets/balance sheet,
such as loans and repayments) between a primary government and its discretely presented
component units are reported as external transactions - that is, as revenues and expenses.
Resource flows between the primary government and its blended component unit are
classified as interfund transactions in the financial statements.

Restricted and Unrestricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

N. Delinquent Property Taxes

Delinquent taxes receivable from the prior year are converted to tax sale certificates
annually in April and October for the County and the City, respectively. At June 30, 2004, the
tax sale certificates are fully offset by an allowance for uncollectible delinquent taxes and
deferred revenue in the fund financial statements. The allowance and deferred revenue amounts
at June 30, 2004 were $14,472,962 and $5,086,336, respectively.

. Deferred Charges

Deferred charges, reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and in the
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds, represent debt 1ssuance costs that are deferred and
amortized over the life of the respective debt using the straight-line method.

P. Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

Most of the City’s employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements.
Approximately 12% of the agreements are currently in negotiation. The remaining 88% of
these agreements extend beyond one year.

. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents include amounts restricted for future debt
payments, deposits maintained as security against future health claims, property tax
overpayments, amounts due to the New York State and Local Teachers’ Retirement System and
amounts collected on behalf of other governments.

. Reservations and Designations of Fund Equity

Reserved fund balances represent fund equity reserved for specific appropriations and
legal or contractual obligations. Designations of unreserved fund balances in governmental
funds indicate the use of these resources in the ensuing year’s budget or tentative plans for
future use. The 2004/2005 City School District budget specifically designates the use of
$4,668,628 for future years use and technology. The City’s 2004/2005 budget specifically
designates $1,275,464 and $1,000,000 of fund balance for future budget years for the General
Fund and Water Fund, respectively.
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S. Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the basic financial statements and the
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, and investments, if any, of all funds, including restricted amounts
{with the exception of the Aviation Fund, Community Development Fund and certain miscellaneous
trust funds) are pooled into one common account in order to maximize mvestment opportunities.
Each fund whose monies are deposited in the pooled accounts has an equity therein, and interest
earned on the investment of these monies is allocated based upon relative equity at month end.

Deposits

Deposits include demand deposits, time deposits and certificates of deposits with original
maturities of three months or less with all short-term cash surpluses invested at money market rates
in overnmight accounts. All deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized in an amount
equal to 102% of deposits not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Securities that
may be pledged as collateral are limited to the obligations of the United States or any obligation
fully insured as to the principal and interest by the Umited States acting through an agency, and
obligations of New York State or obligations of any municipal corporation, school district, or
district corporatton of the State of New York and must be held either by the financial institutions
trust department or by a third party custodial bank. At year end, the carrying amount of the City's
deposits, inciuding certificates of deposits, was $94,595,244 and the bank balance was $98,617,765.
As of June 30, 2004 all deposits were insured or collateralized.
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2004 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Subtotal
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Machtnery and equipment
Improvements/infrastructure
Subtotal

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Improvements/infrastructure
Total
Net capital assets -
governmental activities

Depreciation was charged to activities as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government support

Police department
Fire department

Other public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation

Home and community services

Education

Total governmental activities
depreciation expense

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2003 Increases Decreases June 30, 2004
$ 16,190934 § - 3 - $16,190,934

75,462,028 20,158,283 5,561.076 90.059.235

91,652.962 20.158.283 5,561,076 106,250,169

284,469,108 - - 284,469,108
70,030,704 5,067,654 2,531,574 72,566,784
246,047 759 4.825.855 - 250,873,614
600,547.571 9,893,509 2.531,574 607,909,506
692,200,533 30.051,792 8,092,650 714.159.675
189,490,890 9,716,803 - 199,207,693
48,416,317 5,134,904 2,463,100 51,088,121
121,075,730 10,623.892 - 131,699,622
358.982.937  25.475.599 2.463.100 381,995,436
$333,217,596 $4,576,193 $ 5,629,550  $332,164,239

$ 1,733,837

622,636

1,342,397

9,404

12,659,839

1,313,103

227,014

7,357,792

25266022

(Continued)
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (CONT’D))

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2003 Increases Decreases __June 30, 2004
Business-type activities:
Not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,824,468 § 35237 $ - % 1,859,705
Construction in progress 8,580,417 8,370,575 7,496,274 9,854,718
Subtotal 10,804,885 8.405,812 7,496,274 11,714,423
Other capital assets:
Buildings 102,794,727 713,683 - 103,508,410
Machinery and equipment 16,820,954 1,204,623 82,062 17,943,515
Improvements/infrastructure 107,165,831 6,584,438 - 113,750,269
Subtotal 226,781,512 8,502,744 82,062 235.202.194
Total capital assets 237,586,397 16,908,556 7,578,336 246,916,617
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 53,155,928 4,300,998 - 57,456,926
Machinery and equipment 12,874,298 997,968 79.582 13,792,684
Improvements/infrastructure 51,797,938 4,337,039 - 56,134,977
Total 117,828,164 9,636,005 79,582 127,384,587
Net capital assets -
business-type activities ~ $119,758,233 § 7,272,551 § 7,498,754 3$119,532,030
Depreciation was charged to activities as follows:
Business-type activities:
Aviation $ 8,769,178
Water 477,915
Sewer 242,284
Food Service 146,628
Total business-type activities
depreciation expense $_9.636,005
(Continued)
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4. CAPITAL INDEBTEDNESS
General Obligations Bonds Payable

General obligation bonds are direct obligations for which the full faith and credit of the City
are pledged. Bonds are generally issued as serial bonds for a period equivalent to one-half of the
period of probable usefulness for each improvement as defined by the New York State Local
Finance Law. The interest rates on long-term debt range from 2.5% to 9.37% with maturnity dates
through fiscal 2022.

Changes in long-term liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2004:

Balance at Balance at Amount due
June 30, 2003 Additions Reductions June 30, 2004 within ong year

Governmental activities:

Bonds and notes payable:
General cbligation bonds payable $ 215865705 b 20,054,452 hy 20,571,473 § 215,348,684 $ 19,240,271

Bond anticipation notes payable - 3,200,000 - 3,200,000 3,200,000
Revenue anticipation notes payable 27,305,000 53,000,000 62,305,000 18,000,000 18,000,000
Tax anticipation notes payable 3,800,000 3,300,000 3,800,000 3,300,000 3,300,000
Capital lease obligations 2,178,109 - 520,384 1,657,725 524,386
Installment debt 154,703 - 154,703 - -
Total bends and notes payable 249,303,517 79,554,452 87,351,560 241,506,409 44.264.657
Other liabilities:
Amount due to retirement systems 14,803,897 12,044,700 14,155,039 12,693,558 6,869,956
Accrued compensated absences 16,266,082 9,687,929 10,715,969 15,238,042 5,722,117
Self-insurance claims 12,785,285 65,442,719 62,160,877 16,067,127 12,851,671
Due to New York State 623,036 - 591,622 31,414 31,414
Judgments and claims 3,000,000 1,033,497 1,033,497 3,000,000 -
Environmental remediation 8,295,140 471,156 - 8,772,896 -
Retroactive compensation liability 6,007,744 - 6,007,744 - -
Other liabilities 271,694 - 250,874 20.820 -
Total other liabilities 62,052,878 88,686,601 94,915,622 55,823,857 25,475,158
Govermnmental aclivities
long-term liabilities $§ 311356395 ... 168,241,053 $  182.267,182 $§ 297.330,266 b 69,739,815
(Continued)
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4.

CAPITAL INDEBTEDNESS (CONT’D)

Changes in long-term liabilities (Cont’d)

Payments on the bonds and notes payable that pertain to the City’s governmental activities
are made by the debt service fund, except for the capital lease obligations, which are paid by the
General and Capital Projects funds (See Note 7).

Liabilities for compensated absences, retirement, self-insurance claims and judgments and
claims attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated by the General Fund or the City
School District, which is a special revenue fund. The liability for environmental remediation will be
liquidated by the City School District.

Balance at Balance at Amount due
June 30, 2003 Additions Reductions June 30, 2004 within ene year
Business-type activities:
Bends and note payable:
General obligation bonds payable 3 54,840,474 3 6,512,839 $ 7,591,731 3 53,761,582 by 4,237,281
Bond anticipation notes payable 3.066.000 1.632,000 3,066,000 1,632,000 1,632,000
Total bonds and notes payable 57,906,474 8,144,839 10,657,731 55,393 582 5,869,281
Other liabilities:
Amount due to retirement systems 684,813 569,673 1,099,958 154,528 103,361
Accrued compensated absences 710,507 435,967 540,363 656,111 310,303
Self-insurance claims 2,179,789 3,126,851 3,212,042 2,094,598 751,565
Total other liabilitics 3,575,109 4,182,491 4,852,363 2,905,237 1,165,229
Business-type activities
long term liabilities § 61481583 3 12,327,330 b 15,510,094 h) 58,298,819 § 7,034 510

Prior-Year Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for ail future debt service payments on the
old bonds.

Advanced Refunding of Debt

In June 2004, the City of Syracuse issued series 2004A bonds totaling $3,730,000. These
bonds were delivered on June 14, 2004 with an interest rate ranging from 2% to 4.5%. The net
proceeds of approximately $3,572,000 for series A after payment of approximately $158,000 in
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs were deposited into an escrow account to be
used to pay off general obligation bonds.

(Continued)
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4. CAPITAL INDEBTEDNESS (CONT'D)
Advanced Refunding of Debt (Cont’d)
The refunding reduced total debt service payments over the next 10 years by nearly
$160,000. This results in an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt
service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $116,000.

Summary of Debt Service on Bonds to Maturity

As of June 30, 2004, amounts due to service general obligation bonds payable principal and
interest in future years are as follows:

Govemmental Activities Business-type activities

Years Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2005 $ 19,240,271 5 9818442 % 4,237,281 3 2,278,381 b 35,574,375

20006 19,688,720 8,936,336 4,559,098 2,190,484 35,374,638
2007 19,650,545 7,982,087 4,665,751 2,021,882 34,320,265
2008 19,009,885 7,054,720 4,829,524 1,840,246 32,734,375
2009 19,305,611 6,181,624 4,909,979 1,653,268 32,050,482
2010-2014 75,640,597 19,098,385 21,979,395 5,328,457 122,046,834
2015-2019 38,043,055 5,561,385 8,318,132 1,097,380 53,019,952
2020-2022 4,770,000 400,213 262,422 8,281 5440916

TOTALS S 215,348,684 365033192 § 53761582 5 16418379 § 350,561,837

Short-term debt
Revenue and Tax Anticipation Notes Payable

For governmental funds, notes issued in anticipation of the receipt of revenues are recorded
as a liability of the fund that will actually receive the proceeds from the issuance of the notes. The
revenue anticipation and tax anticipation notes represent a liability that will be extinguished by the
use of expendable, available resources of the fund.

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable

Notes 1ssued in anticipation of proceeds from the subsequent sale of serial bonds are
recorded as current liability of the fund that will actually receive the proceeds from the issuance of
the serial bond. State law requires that bond anticipation notes issued for capital purposes be
converted to long-term financing within five years after the original issue date,

(Continued)
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4. CAPITAL INDEBTEDNESS (CONT'D)

Short-term debt (Cont’d)

Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2004:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2003 Additions Reductions June 30, 2004
Governmental Activities:
Bond anticipation notes b - % 3200000 % - 3,200,000
Revenue anticipation notes 27,305,000 53,000,000 62,305,000 18,000,000
Tax anticipation notes 3,800,000 3.300,000 3.800.000 3.300,000
$.31,105000 § 59500000 3§ 66105000 § 24,500,000
Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2003 Additions Reductions June 30, 2004
Business-type Activities:
Bond anticipation notes $§ 3006000 3 1,632,000 % 3066000 § 1,632,000

5.  AIRPORT LEASE AND USE AGREEMENTS

The City entered into lease and use agreements with certain ailines. Among other provisions,
the agreements require that landing fees and terminal space rental rates be reviewed annually and
adjusted as necessary so that the total revenues are sufficient to meet all airport expenditures, including
amortization charges for certain capital improvements. At the end of each year, the landing fees and
rental rates are adjusted based on the volume of airline traffic and the Airport's actual operating results.

The City also entered into various operating agreements with tenants for the use of Airport
facilities, including parking areas and customer service areas. Normally, the terms of the agreements
include a minimum fixed annual guarantec payment to the Airport, as well as additional contingent
payments based on the tenants' annual volume of business.

Approximate future minimum payments due to the City as of June 30, 2004 under non-

cancelable operating leases were as follows:

YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30, AMOUNT
2005 $ 1,654,058
2006 992,275
2007 867,749
2008 805,133
2009 784,951
Thereafter 10,398,602
TOTAL $ 15,502,768
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6. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The City School District leases property and equipment under operating leases. Total rental
expenditures on such leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 were approximately $1,760,000.
The minimum future non-cancelable operating lease payments were as follows as of June 30, 2004:

YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30, AMOUNT
2005 $ 904,645

2006 733,206

2007 578,068

2008 406,986

2009 406,986
2010-2012 761,994
TOTAL $ 3,791,885

The City leases a parking garage from a component unit. In addition the City leases
equipment and property from unrelated entities. Total rental expenditures on these leases for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 were approximately $1,430,000. Future minimum lease payments
for these non-cancelable operating leases were as follows as of June 30, 2004:

YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30, AMOUNT
2005 $ 1,456,128
2006 1,451,138
2007 1,426,980
2008 1,429,342
2009 1,386,327
Thereafter 15,663,848
TOTAL $ 22813763

(Continued)
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6. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

The City has entered into various operating agreements for leases of various parking garages,
lots and buildings. These parking garages cost approximately $30,320,000 with accumulated
depreciation of $18,565,500 and are included in the transportation activity. Future minimum lease
payments due to the City as of June 30, 2004 under non-cancelable operating leases were as follows:

YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30, AMOUNT
2005 $ 910,867

2006 882,082

2007 773,017

2008 701,889

2009 640,217
Thereafter 5,712,727
TOTAL $ 9,621,699

7. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The City and City School District are obligated under certain leases accounted for as capital
leases. The leased assets and related liabilities under capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair market value of the assets. Capital assets
include leased assets in the education activity of $3,800,000 and in the fire department activity of
$2,006,579 with accumulated depreciation of $1,404,605. The related obligations are accounted for
as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets in the governmental activities., Payments are
expenditures of the General and Capital Projects Funds. The following is a schedule of future
minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the net present value of the minimum
lease payments as of June 30, 2004.

Year ending June 30:

2005 $ 524,386

2006 614,892

2007 467,753

2008 124,981

2009 124,981
Minimum lease payments - capital leases 1,856,993

Less: Amounts representing interest 8.5% per annum (199,268)
Present value - minimum lease payments $ 1,657,725

{Continued)
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8.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Receivables and Payables

To improve cash management, most City disbursements are made from a pooled account in
the general fund. This cash management practice, as well as normal delays in processing interfund

transfers and reimbursement, are the main reason why interfund receivables and payables exist.
These receivables and payables are short-term in nature and are typically repaid in less than one

year. The following schedule summarizes individual fund interfund receivables and payables at

June 30, 2004:

General Fund
City School District
Community Development
Capital Projects Fund
Proprietary Funds:

Aviation

Food Service
Nonmajor governmental funds:

Debt Service

Special Grants
Agency

Total

AMOUNT AMOUNT
RECEIVABLE _ PAYABLE

$ 809,490 § 270
11,083,994 -
270 59,551
8,361,537 817,250
817,250 695,488
933,941 -
1,350,935 -

- 54,451

- 21,730,407

$ 23357417 § 23,357417

The following schedule summarizes receivables and payables between the primary

General Fund
Community Development
Capital Projects Fund
Proprietary Fund:

Water Fund
Nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Grants

Local Development
Component units:

SURA

SIDA

SEDCO

Total

government and the component units at June 30, 2004:

56

AMOUNT AMOUNT
RECEIVABLE PAYABLE

$ 3,897.872 § -
565,014 23,880
88,000 -

- 8,131

_ 8,177

1,680,608 -
40,188 282,695

; 2,191,566

: 3.757.233

6,271,682 6,271,682
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8.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (CONT’D)

Receivables and Payables (Cont’d)

The amounts receivable and payable above are as of June 30, 2004. The amounts due to and
due from primary government in the basic financial statement for SIDA and SEDCO are as of
December 31, 2003. The interfund receivables and payables differences relating to SIDA and

SEDCQO are as follows:

SIDA:

The difference in the receivable is a result of Community Development’s collection of its
HUD 108 loan payments of $340,000. The difference in the payable is a result of $88,000 in
construction costs due for a capital project and loans of $3,682.

SEDCO:

The difference in the payable resulted from $28,328 of economic development loans by
Community Development.

Transfers

Transfers among funds are provided for as part of the annual budget process. They facilitate
annual confributions from the operating budget to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds.
They also facilitate the contribution of proprietary fund earnings to the General Fund. Interfund
transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, which were routine in nature, were as follows:

Transfers Transfers
In Out
General Fund $ 2,540,000 $ 16,369,849
Capital Projects Fund 2,375,321 874,673
Special revenue funds:
City School District 2,225,271 17,557,374
01l and Flushing - 65,859
Debt Service Fund 30,267,163 -
Proprietary funds:
Water - 2,100,000
Sewer - 440,000
Food Service
Total $ 37,407,755 $ 37,407,755
(Continued)
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9.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The City participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System (ERS)
and the New York State Policemen's and Firemen's Retirement System (PFRS). The School District
also participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System and in the New
York State and Local Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS). These are cost sharing multiple public
employer defined benefit retirement systems (Systems). The Systems provide retirement benefits as
well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute, and
benefits to employees, are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law
(NYSRSSL). The Systems offer a wide range of plans and benefits which are related to years of
service and final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death and disability benefits and
optional methods of benefit payments. All benefits generally vest after ten years of credited service.

All participating employers in each System are jointly and severally liable for any actuariat
unfunded amounts. Such amounts are collected through annual billings to all participating
employers. Generally, all employees, except certain part-time employees, participate in the
Systems. The Systems are noncontributory except for employees who joined the Employees’
Retirement System after July 26, 1976, or the Teachers’ Retirement System after June 26, 1976,
who contribute 3% of their salary during the first 10 years of service. Employee contributions are
deducted by employers from employees’ paychecks and are sent currently to the Systems.

As set forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroiler of the State of New York (Comptroller)
serves as sole trustee and administrative head of the Systems. The Comptroller shall adopt and may
amend rules and regulations for the control of the funds. The Systems issue publicly available
financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary information. These
reports may be obtained by writing to:

ERS and PFRS:
The New York State and Local Retirement Systems, Governor Smith State Building,

Albany, New York 12244,

TRS:
The New York State Teachers’ Retirement System, 10 Corporate Woods Drive, Albany,

New York 12211-2395.

The City 1s required to contribute based upon an actuarially-determined rate. The required
contributions are as follows:

TRS ERS PFRS
June 30, 2004 $ 6,657,007 3§ 5,046,463 §$ 4,503,591
June 30, 2003 3,844,061 1,153,056 1,450,584
June 30, 2002 3,381,218 1,095,458 1,430,500

(Continued)
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9.

10.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Local Pension Funds

The City maintains Local Fire Pension and Police Pension Funds for those employees who
did not elect {o join the State System tn 1923. The City last accepted new members in 1934. The
plans were non-contributory on the part of employees. Local pension costs are recognized as paid.
For the year ended June 30, 2004, $41,617 was paid by the City's General Fund and $349,976 was
paid by the City’s Fiduciary Pension Trust Funds. On June 30, 2004, there were 14 widows
receiving payments under the plans. The pension benefit obligation of this plan is not significant to

the City.

SELF INSURANCE

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City is
primarily self-insured for medical, dental, workers' compensation and general liability claims.
Airport claims in excess of $100,000 are insured as are losses relating to airport vehicles in excess
of $5,000,000. Property coverage exists for certain buildings including City Hall, airport terminal,
City Hall Commons, Department of Public Works and all city schools for losses in excess of
$100,000 per occurrence.

With the exception of the City School District and the business-type funds, the City currently
reports all of its risk management activities in the General Fund. Claim expenditures and liabilities
are reported when it 1s probable that a loss occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated. Liabilities accrued include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not

reported.

The estimated liability for health and dental claims is based on prior experience with actual
payments of claims. The estimated liability for workers’ compensation represent claims which have
occurred and are open, due to an actual or future final determination of benefit payout as prescribed
by the New York State Workers’ Compensation Board. Judgments and claims liability is based on
estimates received from the City’s Department of Law or external counsel defending the claims.

The City believes these provisions, as described in Note 4, are adequate to cover their
liability for claims based on current available information but these estimates may differ from the
amount ultimately paid when claims are settled.

General Fund cash and cash equivalents of $1,300,000 were on deposit for payment of
health claims by a third-party administrator.

{Continued)
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11.

12,

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the retirement benefits described in Note 9, the City provides postretirement
health care benefits to its retired employees and their survivors. The City pays for all costs except
$50 per year paid by retired police and firemen with 20 years of service and survivors who pay $88
per month. Substantially all other City employees may become eligible for health insurance benefits
if they reach normal retirement age while working for the City after 10 years of service. At June 30,
2004, approximately 1,650 City retirees and survivors were cligible. Expenditures for retiree health
costs are expensed when paid. Expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2004, net of retiree and
survivor contributions of $285,000, were approximately $11,386,000.

School District employees may become eligible for these benefits if they attain normal
retirement age while working for the District and have at least 10 years of full-time service with the
District if hired after January 1, 1980 (five years of service if hired prior to January 1, 1980). At
June 30, 2004, approximately 2000 retirees met these requirements. The retirees must contribute to
the cost of benefits, up to age 65, an amount equal to the current cost of Medicare Part B. Retirees
age 65 and older are responsible for paying Medicare B coverage directly to the federal government.
The District is responsible for all other costs. Expenditures for retiree health insurance costs are
expensed as paid. Expenditures for retiree health insurance costs for the year ended June 30, 2004,
net of retiree contributions of $871,000, were approximately $9,950,000.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Numerous real estate tax certiorari proceedings are presently pending against the City of
Syracuse, New York on grounds of alleged tnequality of assessment. Adverse decisions to the City
could have a substantial impact through the reduction of assessments and tax refunds to successful
litigants. Since the outcome of these proceedings cannot presently be determined, no provision for
this exposure, if any, has been included in the accompanying basic financial statements.

The City receives grants which are subject to audit by agencies of New York State and the
federal government. During 1997, the City School District received notification from the New York
State Department of Education that approximately $3,600,000 was owed back to New York State in
relation to certain state funded programs. This obligation has been included in the Statement of Net
Assets as a liability. The District paid $591,622 during 2004 and has a remaining balance of
$31,414 to be paid in the year ending June 30, 2005.

For the year ended June 30, 2004, the District recorded a long-term liability of $8,772,896 in
the Statement of Net Assets, to recognize estimated costs associated with asbestos remediation in

District buildings.

The City has a potential liability for employees who are not entered into the Retirement
System due to the fact that they were never offered the right to join. Any liability relating to this
contingency is not determinable at June 30, 2004.
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13.

14.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On June 8, 2004, the District authorized a request for the issuance of Revenue Anticipation
Notes (RANS) in an amount not to exceed $21,000,000 to cover an expected cash flow shortage due
to the timing of cash receipts from all sources. The request was approved by the City of Syracuse,
New York Common Council on June 28, 2004 and RANS of $19,000,000 were issued on July 15,
2004.

On August 31, 2004 the City issued $34,000,000 in Revenue Anticipation Notes (RANS) to
cover an expected cash flow shortage due to the timing of cash receipts from various sources.

On September 8, 2004, the District authonzed a request for the issuance of Revenue
Anticipation Notes (RANS) in an amount not to exceed $29,000,000 to cover an expected cash flow
shortage due to the timing of cash receipts from all sources. The request was approved by the City
of Syracuse, New York Common Council on September 27, 2004 and RANS of $21,000,000 were

issued on October 28, 2004.

On October 13, 2004, the District requested the issuance of Public Improvement (Serial)
Bonds Series 2004E in an amount of $12,374,500 and Series 2004G in an amount of $1,327,592.
Series 2004E was issued to fund various capital projects of the District. Series 2004G was issued to
fund a portion of the District’s obligation to the New York State Employees Retirement System.
The Bonds were issued October 21, 2004.

On Qctober 21, 2004, the City issued $8,264,000 Series 2004F Public Improvement Bonds
and $7,144,752 Series 2004G Bonds. Series 2004F was issued to fund various capital projects.
Series 2004G was issued to fund a portion of the City’s obligation to the New York State
Employees Retirement System.

RESTATEMENT

The fund balance of the General Fund at July 1, 2003 has been decreased by $1,000,000 to
reflect the correct treatment of proceeds of general obligation bonds payable issued during the year
ended June 30, 2003 which related to the Sewer Fund but were recorded in the General Fund. The
net assets of the Sewer Fund at July 1, 2003 have been increased $1,000,000 to reflect the correct
treatment of proceeds of general obligation bonds payable issued during the year ended June 30,
2003, recorded, in error, in the General Fund. If the proceeds from serial bonds were recorded in
the correct fund, they would have decreased the General Fund excess of revenues and other
financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses and General Fund balance by
$1,000,000 for the year ended June 30, 2003.

(Concluded)
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
JUNE 30, 2004
CITY SCHOOL
DISTRICT CiTY TOTAL
ASSETS:
Pooled cash $ - % 5840,180 $ 5,840,180
Pooled restricted cash - 17,852,676 17,852,676
Due from agency funds 8,361,537 - 8,361,537
Due from other governments - 2,084,415 2,084,415
Due from component units - 88,000 88,000
Other asset 2,260 - 2,260
Total assets $ 8,363,797 § 25,865,271 § 34,229,068
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2.861,115 $ 4,189,629 § 7,050,744
Bond anticipation notes payable - 3,200,000 3,200,000
Due to other funds - 817,250 817,250
Deferred revenues - 88,000 88,000
Total liabilities 2,861,115 8,294,879 11,155,994
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances 5,502,682 - 5,502,682
Reserved for bonded capital projects - 16,897,304 16,897,304
Reserved for debt service - 673,088 673,088
Total fund balance 5,502,682 17,570,392 23,073,074
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 8,363,797 $ 25,865,271 $ 34,229,068

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

CITY SCHOOL
DISTRICT CITY TOTAL
REVENUES:
Use of money and property S - 3 61,936 $ 61,936
Federal and state aid and other grants 1,896,526 3,668,197 5,564,723
Other revenues 36,000 97,010 133,010
Total revenues 1,932,526 3,827,143 5,759,669
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlays 12,201,359 15,963,273 28,164,632
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (10,268,833) (12,136,130) (22,404,963)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESY):
Bond proceeds 7,000,000 11,213,500 18,213,500
Operating transfers in 920,650 1,454,671 2,375,321
Operatings transfers out (159,777) (714,896} (874,673)
Total other financing sources - net 7,760,873 11,953,275 19,714,148
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES (2,507,960) (182,855) (2,690,815)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 8,010,642 17,753,247 25,763,889
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 5,502,682 $ 17,570,392 § 23,073,074
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DEBT SERVICE FUND
JUNE 30, 2004

CITY SCHOOL
DISTRICT CITY TOTAL

ASSETS:
Pooled restricted cash $ - 3 234,360 $ 234,360
Accounts receivable - 3,123,577 3,123,577
Due from agency funds 1,350,935 - 1,350,935
Total assets $ 1,350,935 $ 3,357,937 § 4,708,872
LIABILITIES/Deferred Revenues $ - % 3,123,577 % 3,123,577
FUND BALANCES/Reserved for Bonded Debt 1,350,935 234,360 1,585,295
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,350,935 $ 3,357,937 § 4,708,872

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

CITY SCHOOL

DISTRICT CITY TOTAL
REVENUES:
Other local taxes $ - % 369,118 $ 369,118
Use of money and property 73,088 189,672 262,760
Total revenues 73,088 558,790 631,878
EXPENDITURES:
General government support 6,197 - 6,197
Debt service 9,746,135 11,384,073 21,130,208
Interest on debt 4,825,093 5,346,909 10,172,002
Total expenditures 14,577,425 16,730,982 31,308,407
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (14,504,337) (16,172,192) (30,676,529)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/
Operating transfers in 14,571,230 15,695,933 30,267,163
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES 66,893 (476,259) (409,366)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,284,042 710,619 1,994,661
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 1,350,935  § 234,360 % 1,585,295

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

PERMANENT FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2004
CITY SCHOOL
DISTRICT CITY TOTAL
ASSETS:

Pooled restricted cash $ - 5 10,000 $ 10,000
Restricted cash 15,198 - 15,198
Total assets $ 15,198 % 10,000 % 25,198

FUND BALANCES:
3 15,198 $ 10,000 $ 25,198

Reserved for permanent funds

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF SYRACUSE, NEW YORK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - PERMANENT FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

REVENUES/Use of money and property

EXPENDITURES/General
government support

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Basic Financial Statements

CITY SCHOOL
DISTRICT CITY TOTAL
$ 189 - 3 189
189 - 189
15,009 10,000 25,009
$ 15,198 10,000 $ 25,198
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